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wig, Il (Bar No. 205332)

ASSOCIATES, PC
16644 West Bernardo Drive, Suite 201

UNITED STATES DISTRICT COURT
SOUTHERN DISTRICT OF CALIFORNIA

WEST VIEW RESEARCH, LLC, a
California Limited L|ab|I|ty
Company,

Plaintiff,

V.

REACHNOW, LLC, a Delaware
Limited L|ab|I|ty Company,

Defendant.

CASE NO. '7CV0862 AJB JLB

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT
INFRINGEMENT

JURY TRIAL DEMANDED
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This is an action for patent infringement in which Plaintiff West View
Research, LLC (“West View Research” or “Plaintiff”’) makes the following
allegations against Defendant REACHNOW, LLC (“ReachNow” or “Defendant”)
as follows:

THE PARTIES
1. Plaintiff West View Research is a limited liability company organized

under the laws of the State of California with a principal place of business at 16644
West Bernardo Drive, Suite 201-A, San Diego, California 92127.

2. Upon information and belief, Defendant ReachNow, LLC is a limited
liability company organized under the laws of Delaware with its principal place of
business at 2118 3rd Avenue, Seattle, Washington 98121 and a registered agent at
The Corporation Trust Company, Corporation Trust Center, 1209 Orange Street,
Wilmington, Delaware 19801.

3. Upon information and belief, Defendant ReachNow, LLC changed its
name from BMW Car Sharing, LLC to ReachNow, LLC on or about March 11,
2016, as evidenced by the following screen shot obtained from the State of Delaware

Division of Corporations website on April 25, 2017 at https://icis.corp.

delaware.qov/Ecorp/EntitySearch/EntitySearchStatus.aspx?i=5152465&d=y :

Entity Details

ncomomion 51172012
El Humbr 6152466 Leale ! Eommas | menv ad yyyy)
7

Estity Name REACHNOW, LLC

Limited
Entity Kind. Liabisty Entty Type.  General I
Cempany

REGISTERED AGENT INFORMATION

Namwe. THE CORPORATION TRUST COMPANY

ABdress. CORPORATION TRUST CENTER 1209 ORANGE 3T
City WILMINGTON Courfy.  New Casthe
State DE Postal Code: 19801

PROne: 302-658-7581

FLING HISTORY (Last 5 Filings)

Seq  Description He. ol peges immiddyyyy) Elling Time Date
[mmiddyry)

Amendment Name
BMW CAR SHARING, 1 12018 11:28 AM Iz
LLC

LLC 1 Sz 10:52 AM sz
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4. Upon information and belief, Defendant ReachNow, LLC (formerly
BMW Car Sharing, LLC) filed a Statement of Information with the Secretary of
State for the State of California on or about September 27, 2016 (partially
reproduced below, indicating its business address as 2118 3rd Avenue Seattle,
Washington 98121, and the location of its California Office at 818 West 7" Street,
Los Angeles, California 90017.

\ Secretary of State g o
) Statement of Information LLC-12 D
(Limited Liability Company) _ FILED
. Secretary of State
: State of California

IMPORTANT — Read instructions before completing this form. SEP 2? 2[]]5

Filing Fee - $20.00

Copy Fees - Face Page $1.00 & .50 for each attachment page;

Certification Fee - $5.00

This Space For Office Use Only
. Limited Liabinty Company Nam|
|BMW Car Sharing, LLC
e -Bigi-Secretary-oi-State-Filedumber 3. State or Place of Organization {only if formed outside of California)
" |201214410052 - |pE . L

_4._Business Addresses -

&. Street Address of Principal Office - Do not list a P.O. Box Clty (no abbreviations) State Zip Code

2118 3rd Avenue Seattle Wi 98121

b. Mailing Addrass of LLC, If different than Item 4a City {no abbreviations) State Zip Code

o T T = P 1009 Det ot o = il h B = 'S Lot &l b e S L -l X e}

c. Street Address of Callfornia Office, if item 48 Is not in California - Do not list a P.O. Box City {no abbreviations) . Stale Zip Code

C/O C T Corporation-818 wWest 7th Street Los Angeles CA |90017

5. Upon information and belief, Defendant ReachNow, LLC (formerly
BMW Car Sharing, LLC) is currently active within the State of California, per the
California Secretary of State website (accessed April 25, 2017):

Results of search for LP/LLC Name keyword "bmw" returned 35 entity records (out of 35 records found).

Show| 10 v | entities per page Narrow search results: | bmw car sh

Entity 11 Registration] it 1 1T Agent for Service of 11

Number Date Status Entity Name Jurisdiction Process

201214410052 05/22/2012 ACTIVE BEMW CAR SHARING, LLC DELAWARE C T CORPORATION SYSTEM
(C0168406)

Showing 1 to 1 of 1 entities (narrowed from 35 total entities) Previous E‘ Next

See https://businesssearch.sos.ca.qov/CBS/SearchResults?SearchType=LPLLC&

SearchCriteria=bmw&SearchSubType=Keyword
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6. Upon information and belief, the Internet website of Defendant
ReachNow, LLC (formerly BMW Car Sharing, LLC) is currently accessed when the
URL www.bmwecarsharing.com is entered in the Google search engine (accessed
April 25, 2017):

GO gle bmw usa reachnow § Q

All News Shopping Images Maps More Settings Tools

About 61,400 results (0.61 seconds)

BMW USA Official Website - The Ultimate Driving Machine

(Ad) www.bmwusa.com/ ~

The Future of Luxury is Here. Explore New BMW Models and Locate a Dealer Today.
Legendary Design - Advanced Innovations - Dominating Performance - Athletic Aesthetics
Ratings: Enjoyable to drive 9/10 - Design quality 9/10 - Appearance 9/10 - Reliability 8.5/10
Build Your Own - View All Offers - Locate a Dealer - Book a Test Drive

ReachNow: BMW's Premium Car Sharing Service
————»www.bmwcarsharing.com/ *

ReachNow makes renting a car convenient, fast and fun. Select your BMW or MINI and choose a time to
fit your flexible schedule. Download the app today.

ReachNow: BMW's Premium Car Sharing Services

reachnow.com/ ~

We'll text you a download link. Phone number. ReachNow is committed to protecting your personal
information. Standard rates may apply. US only. Download ...

How It Works - Seattle - Portland - Brooklyn

https://www.google.com/webhp?sourceid=chrome-instant&ion=1&espv=

2&1e=UTF-8#g=bmw+usa+reachnow
JURISDICTION AND VENUE
7. This is an action for patent infringement arising under the patent laws
of the United States, 35 U.S.C. § 1, et seq., including 35 U.S.C. § 271. This Court
has subject matter jurisdiction pursuant to 28 U.S.C. 88 1331 and 1338(a).
8.  This Court has personal jurisdiction over Defendant at least because

Defendant is present within or has ongoing and systematic contacts with the United
States, the State of California, and the Southern District of California. Defendant
has purposefully and regularly availed itself of the privileges of conducting business
in the State of California and in the Southern District of California. Plaintiff’s
claims for relief arise directly from Defendant’s business contacts and other
activities in the State of California and in the Southern District of California.
Defendant has committed acts of patent infringement in this District, and has

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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harmed and continues to harm West View Research in this District, by, among other
things, using, selling, offering for sale, and/or importing or distributing infringing
products and/or services into this District.

9. Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant maintains a corporate
office in Southern California, as detailed infra.

10. Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant advertises and makes
its application computer programs (“apps”) available for download to users in the
Southern District of California (including San Diego), and instructs such users via
its website and other means how to download the apps, as detailed infra.

11. Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant makes its apps
operable in the Southern District of California (including San Diego), and instructs
such users via its website and FAQs and other means within the app(s) themselves
how to operate the app, including user registration, submission of credit card
information, submission of (e.g., California driver license information, etc.), as
detailed infra.

12.  Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant makes its apps
operable in the Southern District of California (including San Diego) such that a
user in San Diego can reserve a vehicle, as detailed infra.

13.  Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant makes its apps
operable in the Southern District of California (including San Diego) such that a
user in San Diego can be charged for e.g., membership fees, including charging of
credit/debit cards linked to bank accounts maintained and originated in San Diego,
as detailed infra.

14.  Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant explicitly states that its
vehicles can be used anywhere in the United States (including the Southern District
of California and San Diego), as detailed infra.

15.  Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant operates a ReachNow
vehicle repository at Seattle Tacoma Airpgrt, offering San Diego residents traveling

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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to Seattle the ability to obtain vehicles at the repository (via the apps) for use, as
detailed infra.

16.  Specifically, and by way of example, Defendant utilizes RideCell, Inc.
(https://ridecell.com) located in San Francisco, California as a primary “back end”

service provider, including servers located in California and utilized by ReachNow
in providing its services to ReachNow users (including those in San Diego), as
detailed infra.
BACKGROUND
17.  West View Research owns all right, title, and interest in U.S. Patent No.
9,396,450 (the “’450 patent”) and U.S. Patent No. 9,299,053 (the “’053 patent”)
(collectively, the “Patents-in-Suit™).

18.  Each of the Patents-in-Suit is valid and enforceable.

19. West View Research is in compliance with the marking requirements
under 35 U.S.C. § 287 in that it has no duty to mark or to give notice in lieu thereof
because it is a patent licensing entity and has no products to mark.

20. The ’450 patent, entitled “Computerized Apparatus and Methods For
Transfer Between Locations,” was duly and legally issued by the United States
Patent and Trademark Office on July 19, 2016, after a full and fair examination. A
copy of the *450 patent is attached hereto as Exhibit A.

21. The ’053 patent, entitled “Portable Computerized Wireless Apparatus,”
was duly and legally issued by the United States Patent and Trademark Office on
March 29, 2016, after a full and fair examination. A copy of the ’053 patent is
attached hereto as Exhibit B.

LITIGATION HISTORY

22.  Plaintiff initiated an action against BMW Manufacturing, LLC, and
BMW of North America, LLC on October 17, 2016 alleging infringement of two
patents, including the ‘053 patent. See Case No. 3:16-CV-02590-JLS-AGS. That
case is still pending.

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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23. The ‘053 patent of the present action was also asserted in Case No.
3:16-CV-02643-JLS-AGS filed October 24, 2016 against Volkswagen Group of
America, Inc. d/b/a Audi of America, Inc., hereinafter “VWGO0A”). That case is still
pending.

24. Prior to Case No. 3:16-CV-02590-JLS-AGS, Plaintiff initiated an
action against Bayerische Motoren Werke AG, BMW of North America, LLC, and
BMW Manufacturing, LLC, on November 10, 2014 alleging infringement of several
patents which did not include either the ‘053 patent or the ‘450 patent or any patents
related thereto. See Case No. 3:14-cv-02670-CAB-WVG. That case was dismissed
with prejudice per Order of the District Court on December 30, 2016, and that
dismissal was subsequently affirmed by the Court of Appeals for the Federal Circuit
on April 19, 2017. See Case No. 2016-1947.

25.  The *450 patent of the present action was not asserted in any of the
above-listed cases (or any other cases in any jurisdiction). The ‘450 patent is a
family member of the ‘053 patent, and shares a common specification.

DEFENDANT’S RELEVANT TECHNOLOGY
26.  Upon information and belief, Defendant makes, uses, sells, offers for

sale, distributes, and/or advertises (including the provision of an interactive website)
their infringing products and services, namely services and/or software that include
but are not limited to:

(1)  All model years (as applicable) of BMW-branded 3-Series, X-models,
and i-Series vehicles configured with “ReachNow” functionality and Android app
compatibility (hereinafter, “ReachNow BMW Vehicles”);

(2)  All model years (as applicable) of Mini- or Mini Cooper-branded
vehicles configured with “ReachNow” functionality and Android app compatibility
(hereinafter, “ReachNow Mini Vehicles™);

(3) 2016 and later (all wversions, as applicable) Android-based
“ReachNow” application computer pgogram (hereinafter, “ReachNow App

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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Products™);

(4) 2016 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Car Sharing” Services
(hereinafter, “Car Sharing Services”);

(5) 2016 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Ride” Services (hereinafter,
“Ride Services”);

(6) 2016 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Fleet Solutions” Services
(hereinafter, “Fleet Services”);

(7) 2016 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Reserve” Services
(hereinafter, “Reserve Services”);

(8) 2016 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Share” Services
(hereinafter, “Share Services”);

(90 2017 and later (as applicable) ReachNow “Fastlane” Services
(hereinafter, “Fastlane Services”);

(10) All model years (as applicable) of BMW-branded 3-Series, X-models,
and i-Series vehicles configured with “ReachNow” functionality and Android app
compatibility, used in conjunction with the ReachNow App Products (hereinafter,
“ReachNow BMW Vehicles and App”);

(11) All model years (as applicable) of Mini- or Mini Cooper-branded
vehicles configured with “ReachNow” functionality and Android app compatibility,
used in conjunction with the ReachNow App Products (hereinafter, “ReachNow
Mini Vehicles and App”);

(12) The ReachNow BMW Vehicles, ReachNow Mini Vehicles,
ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services, Fleet Services,
Reserve Services, Share Services, Fastlane Services, ReachNow BMW Vehicles
and App Products, and ReachNow Mini Vehicles and App may be collectively
referred to herein as the “Accused Products and Services.”

27. The Accused Products and Services directly infringe the Patents-in-Suit
in violation of 5 U.S.C. § 271(a).

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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28.  Upon information and belief, Defendant owns, operates, and/or controls
various Internet websites, including without limitation the URL addresses

http://www.bmwcarsharing.com and http://www.reachnow.com and therefore

manages and/or controls the contents displayed thereon.

29.  Upon information and belief, through the publication and dissemination
of marketing and/or promotional materials, detailed operational instructions, on-line
instructional and promotional videos, links, or other references to application
program download portals such as e.g., “Google Play”, and/or technical assistance,
Defendant entices, encourages, instructs, enables, and otherwise aids and abets third
parties, including but not limited to Defendant’s customers and technical personnel,
Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users of the Accused Products
and Services, to use such Accused Products and Services in a manner that directly
infringes the Patents-in-Suit.

30. Upon information and belief, Defendant, through its ownership and

control of the Internet websites http://www.bmwcarsharing.com and

http://www.reachnow.com, (and other related websites), aids and abets the

infringement of the ‘450 and ‘053 patents by past, current, and prospective
customers, vehicle owners, service personnel, and/or drivers/users of the Accused
Products and/or Services, through Defendant’s publication of additional detailed
operating instructions, instructional and promotional videos, and press releases
concerning the “ReachNow” technologies. Defendant directs the attention of such
customers, owners, and/or drivers/users to these instructional, educational,
promotional, and tutorial publications, thereby enticing, encouraging and aiding and
abetting third parties to use the “ReachNow” features disposed within or in
conjunction with the Accused Products and Services, in a manner that directly
infringes the ‘450 and ‘053 patents.

31. By way of example, Defendant publishes online resources including
account setup, app download, installation, and operating instructions, for the

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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ReachNow  technology and  Accused Products and  Services, at
https://reachnow.com/en/help/ (a true and correct copy of relevant portions of this

webpage are attached hereto as Exhibit C).

32. By way of example, Defendant publishes and distributes user
instructions and manuals for the ReachNow App Products and other Accused
Products and Services within the ReachNow Android-based App (a true and correct
copy of these instructions is attached hereto as Exhibit D).

33. By way of example, Defendant publishes and causes publishing press
releases and promotional material highlighting the ReachNow Accused Products and

Services at https://reachnow.com/en/newsroom and at http://bmwiforum.bmwusa

.com/thread/815/expands-premium-sharing-service- reachnow (a true and correct

copy of relevant portions of these webpage are attached hereto as Exhibits E and F
respectively).

34. By way of example, Defendant publishes and causes publishing press
releases and promotional material highlighting the ReachNow Accused Products and
Services at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=t PlaTKDDMA (a portion of which

Is shown below, accessed on April 25, 2017):

v b com,

You[TD

Welcome to ReachNow

@ Reachiow CarSharing
—— 253 views

COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT
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35. By way of example, Defendant publishes and causes publishing press
releases and promotional material highlighting the ReachNow Accused Products and
Services at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=3AsQmQshyGc (a portion of which

is shown below, accessed on April 25, 2017):

YouQ[ili: Search

P o» W) Ta1j232

ReachNow Mobility Services

ReachMow CarSharing

)
-:] : 2,317 views
Youl L3 Search

»l o) 1:34/2:32

ReachNow Mobility Services
@ ReachNow Carsharing

O3 sutecioe G 2,317 views

-10-
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36. By way of example, Defendant publishes and causes the publishing of

instructional material instructing users how to use the ReachNow Accused Products

and Services at https://www.youtube.com/watch?v=0bnKx9GskDM (a portion of
which is shown below, accessed on April 25, 2017):

C & Secure | hitps//wwwyoutube.com

\'EIII Search

ReachNow-authored
instructional video
showing how to use
software app

P M W) 026/213

ReachMNow CarSharing

ReachMow CarSharing
9

50,685 views

37. By way of example, Defendant conducted a marketing presentation and
lecture(s), as well as demonstrations, at the Los Angeles Auto Show in November,
2016, in Los Angeles, California regarding the Accused Products and Services, as
evidenced by the following Internet article (and photo of ReachNow BMW Vehicle

Product in Southern California) at http://www.latimes.com/business/la-fi-hy-live-

updates-2016-la-auto-show-reachnow-app-bmw-mini-1479237530-htmlstory.html,

(a true and correct copy of relevant portions of this webpage is attached hereto as
Exhibit G):

-11-
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ReachNow Accused
Product being

demonstrated at Los
Angeles Auto Show
(Nov. 2016)

DReach

“Steve Banfield, chief executive of BMW ReachNow, wants to make one thing

clear. “We’re not just a ride-sharing service!” he said at the L.A. Auto Show.”
{emphasis added}

38. By way of example, Defendant publishes a website that advocates
taking their vehicles on trips “out of town” (and hence presumably out of Seattle,
Portland, and NYC to destinations including the Southern District of California) at

https://reachnow.com/en/:

E)ReachNow  chooseacity - Help
=W - g W o

"¢ More room.for adve

5 d oy
Drive cars with extra seafing and trunk space— ¢
» wperfect for trips out of town of impdrant errands,
- R

Enter your phone number.
We'll text you a download link.

-12-
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39. Similarly, and by way of example, Defendant publishes a website that
provides pricing for up to 5 consecutive days of use (and hence allowing for trips
out of Seattle, Portland, and NYC, such as the “out of town” trips referenced supra)
at http://reachnow.com/en/seattle-wa/drive/#pricing:

@ reachnow.com

Per minute Per hour Per day

41¢ 20 *160
30¢ *50 *240
*80 *300

As noted infra, under “Fleet Solutions” agreements, the maximum duration is

fourteen (14) days versus five days.

40. Similarly, and by way of example, Defendant contemplates use
anywhere in the United States, including Southern California (subject to possible
additional charges based on mileage) as set forth in the ReachNow Android App

“FAQ’s” (a screen shot of which is shown infra):

13-
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) T 4 1005 1205PM @ = QUG T 4 100%[3 12:04 PM

P & FAQs »

ee for replacing lost or damaged Member Key

cards. Overview

What is ReachNow?
How do | reset my password? ReachMow is a premium car sharing service,
You can reset your personal account information owned by the BMW Group. ReachNow is
via the App. Click 'Profile’ on the left hand menu designed to provide a user experience that's as
and select 'Forgot Password.' A link will be sent convenient as owning a car: Drive on your own
via text to reset your password. terms without the hassle and expense of

traditional car rental programs.

Back to Index 1
Why should | join ReachNow?

ReachNow Members can drive premium vehicles
with the following benefits:

« ReachMNow can be used for one-way trips.
Simply pick-up and drop-off a vehicle on

Drive

the street in your neighborhood.

= Pay by the minute - $0.49 per minute,
reduced to $0.41 for a limited time, while
driving and $£0.30 per minut
(for paused trips only). Keep tt
minutes, 2 hours or several da
(maximum of 120 hours) - no advance
notice is needed. ReachMow is as flexible
as your lifestyle.

« Ability to use membership in every city

Can I drive wherever | want?

As long as you stay within the U.S., yes. The
vehicle must be returned within the designated
Home Area. Please keep in mind mileage over
400 miles per day is billed at $0.45 per mile -
over and above any price caps or per-minute
pricing charges.

ile parked
car for 10

Can | use GoodToGo (Seattle area) or E-
ZF_’ass (?rooklyn area) to cross the residential zones within our Home Area
b"dges in the Seattle or Brooklyn area? « Fuel/charaing and insirance cnsts

. PR T "
o arRimng 1o Meiuet at meters arrg

41. Similarly, and by way of example, Defendant contemplates use
anywhere in the United States (subject to possible additional charges based on

mileage) as set forth in its Membership Agreement at http://reachnow.com

/en/membership-agreement/ (a true and correct copy of relevant portions of these

webpages are attached hereto as Exhibit H, the “Membership Agreement”):

“3.4 Trip Length and Radius. Unless the Reserve Feature is
used, the duration of a Trip may not be less than one (1) minute or
more than one hundred and twenty (120) hours. Each Trip must begin
and end in the ““Home Area,” which is the area of the city in which a
Trip will begin, as shown on the map in the App and the in-car screen.
In no event may a Vehicle leave or be operated outside of the United
States. There is a daily mileage cap of the number of miles Member
can drive in a Vehicle before additional fees beyond the standard per
minute fees or hourly/daily Rate Caps (as described in the Pricing
Terms, the ““Rate Caps’ and each a *““Rate Cap’) will be assessed
against Member (the “Daily Mileage Cap’’). The Daily Mileage Cap

-14-
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1 Is described in the Pricing Terms. If a Daily Mileage Cap is exceeded
on a day during a Trip, Member will incur additional costs beyond the
2 applicable Rate Cap for such Vehicle use.” ...
3 «4. Additional Restrictions and Requirements Pertaining to the
4 Use of Fleet Solutions Vehicles.
5 4.2 Trip Length. The duration of a Trip taken with a Fleet
6 Solutions Vehicle”may not be less than one (1) minute or more than
fourteen (14) days”{emphasis added}
.
8 42. By way of example, Defendant publishes a website that actively
9 | instructs users to insert their phone number (which can include, inter alia, those
10 | within area codes 619, 760, and 858 of Southern California, as demonstrated via test
11 | on April 25, 2017) to receive an active hyperlink via which the user can download
12 | the ReachNow app via e.g., the Google Play store, at https://reachnow.com/en/:
13
14
15
16
17
18
19
20
21
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
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1 @ Sccure | https://reachnow.com/cn/
2 EJReachNow ChooseaCity ~ Help
3
4
5 “sMore room:for adve
6 D.r.ive cars with extra seatiné.:and truﬁ(; space—
& .-_perfec-t for trips out of tl:nwn. D(I pdhé
; 8
8
9
Enter your phone number.
10 We'll text you a download link.
11
12
13
14 @ reachnow.com
BReachNow  chooseaCity «~  Help & Appstore
15
16 ReachNow is available on
17 these. two platforms.
18
oy | @ o Store
19 =
20
21 ABOUT US ":“il[lf‘.l'::l.f'i‘ P SociePiay
22
23 . ..
43. By way of example, Defendant both: (i) offers, and (ii) acts as software
24 ]
developer for, the Android-based ReachNow App Product as shown at https://play.
25 . ]
google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing:
26
27
28
-16-
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C | & Secure | https//play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing

‘ Apps Categories w Home Top Charts MNew Releases
*Reac ong n 10 se naverage (4

My apps

Shop
Games ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
< 5
Family Updated Installs Current Version
Editors’ Choice April & 2017 10,000 - 50,000 8.0
Requires Android Interactive Elements
4.4 and up Shares Info
Permissions Offered By
Account jew datails propriate ReachMow, LLC
Redeem

Buy qift card
My wishlist

My Play activity

Parent Guide

44. By way of example, and upon information and belief, Defendant

utilizes RideCell, Inc. (https://ridecell.com) located in San Francisco, California as

a primary “back end” service provider, including servers located in California and
utilized by ReachNow in providing its services to ReachNow users (including those

in the Southern District of California):

RideCell is ReachNow service
provider

@ reachnow.com/en/part

BReachNow  seattie,wa ~  Help

Overview How it works.

ReachNow is proud to collaborate with the following partners:
(@)
Y
T n | SRideCell [Enrcae @) B
SFORE N
A T L A S Alliance

See http://reachnow.com/en/partners/

17-
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= RideCell Ridesharing Carsharing Autonomous About Contact

Theawoild's mostintelligent mobility platfor

RideCell offers the best way for automotive OEMs and new mobility startups to launch premiumigervice

RideCell powers ReachNow, BMW's j—— *...car makers are flocking to RideCell to
carsharing service in Seattle, Portland . get themselves into the ride hailing/car  FAGGUES
and Brooklyn—with plans to expand ] i sharing game.”

cities and services Learn more »
Leamn more »

See https://ridecell.com/

“General Practices Regarding Use and Storage

You acknowledge that RideCell may establish general practices and
limits concerning use of the Service, including without limitation the
maximum period of time that data or other content will be retained by
the Service and the maximum storage space that will be allotted on
RideCell's _servers on _your behalf.” {emphasis added}
https://ridecell.com/terms.htmi

“HOW DOES RIDECELL OPERATE?

We provide an on site training and setup support for 3 days. Our
software is customized based on how you operate and we can also
integrate RideCell within your system. We put in place a private
server (VSP) and private database that are hosted at our data
center and we take care of the server and database monitoring,
maintenance and management. You will receive daily reports with
graphical charts. For more details, feel free to contact us and request a
demo.” {emphasis added}https://ridecell.com/fag.html

“Ridecell.Com - Info ridecell.com... Site is hosted in San Francisco, CA, 94107,
United States and links to network IP address 104.20.80.80.” {emphasis added}
http://ridecell.com.hypestat.com/

45.  Upon information and belief, as a result of Defendant’s active,

knowing, intentional, and ongoing efforts that induce infringement of the Patents-in-

-18-
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Suit, including the ‘450 and ’053 patents, as described herein, substantially all of
Defendant’s customers and technical personnel, vehicle owners, and/or users/drivers
of the Accused Products and Services use and operate the Accused Products and
Services in a manner that directly infringes one or more of the Patents-in-Suit,
including the *450 patent and *053 patent.

46.  Through publication and dissemination of the foregoing materials, as
well as others, Defendant actively encourages, solicits, enables, and teaches past,
current, and prospective customers, vehicle owners, and/or users/drivers of the
Accused Products and Services.

47. Upon information and belief, Defendant operates a ReachNow car

sharing facility at Seattle Tacoma International Airport, as indicated at the website

page http://reachnow.com/en/seattle-wa/drive/:

mﬂ. Parking Pricing Cars

We're in your neighborhood

The ReachNow Home Area éxtends throughout Seattle and SeaTac International Airport.

48. Upon information and belief, Seattle Tacoma International Airport
receives approximately twenty (20) inbound flights originated from San Diego, via
multiple different air carriers, on a bi-daily basis (i.e., every 12 hours), as indicated
at http://www.flightstats.com/go/FlightStatus/flightStatusByAirport.do:

-19-
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(SEA) Seattle-Tacoma International Airport Arrivals

I 7 N T, Exe_m |ary :_|_2-hour
S P eriod (April 25,
N 0172 wherein
S I twenty (20) flights
B originating in San
- = F - Diego, CA (among 9
separate air carriers)
@ | e e arrived at SEA
@ b - — g_eattle Tacoma)
P irport where
B Defendant provides
_ . the Accused
Products and

49. Upon information and belief, passengers departing from San Diego-

originated flights at Seattle Tacoma International Airport (SEA) can and do utilize
Defendant’s ReachNow products and services (Including the ReachNow App) to
find and access ReachNow vehicles for transportation from SEA to e.g., Seattle area

locales, as indicated at the website page http://bmwmedia.iconicweb.com/mediasite

/attachments/160809 ReachNow Car Sharing Launches New Service for Sea-

Tac_Airport.pdf (a true and correct copy of relevant portions of this webpage is
attached hereto as Exhibit I):

“Seattle, Wash. — August 9, 2016... ReachNow members now
have a new way to get out of town as the company today announced

-20-
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adding a new "park and fly" service for the Seattle-Tacoma
International Airport. This new service, opening August 10, will allow
any ReachNow member to park and pick-up ReachNow cars from
the off-site Wally Park Premier Garage, located next to the airport at
18613 International Blvd.

“ReachNow is dedicated to providing our members with
mobility solutions that fit their lifestyles,” said ReachNow CEO Steve
Banfield... Members flying into Sea-Tac can reserve a car via the
ReachNow app once they land and grab their bags, ...” {emphasis
added}

50. Upon information and belief, and based on tests conducted by Plaintiff

in San Diego, CA 92127, the ReachNow Android App is, once installed, operable
outside the designated vehicle “Home Area” to perform at least: (i) download and
installation of the App; (ii) “Member” registration, including entry of California
driver license number and San Diego resident information; (ii) optical scan of
drivers license using App; (iii) transmission of required verification code to a San
Diego area mobile phone via text; (iv) completion of the Member registration
process; (v) graphic illustration of the location of ReachNow vehicles on a map; (vi)
selection of various different types of ReachNow vehicles (e.g., BMW X1, Mini,
etc.); and (vii) reservation of a selected vehicle for a period of time. See exemplary
screen shots obtained from the ReachNow Android App as part of the

aforementioned test below:

-21-
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Man D4/ 2472007
t-‘.f’ ReachMow verification
% ¢ code 269
1228 PM

Did you just register? It can
take up 1o 3 minutes to
verify your driving record,
If the problem continues,
please contact Member
Support at +18447322466

155 P

Allow ReachMow 10 take

pictures and record video?

COUNTI

Ba gle -

51, San Diego, CA 92102

RESEMWD PiM V1A TEXT

FORGOT PASSWORD

=N Qe 3

ElReachMNow

Rezervation expires

190140
g s

@) =) (

Degtinabion  Sigral Damags Lindock

o Poitiand Communay
Coliege Sybvunia

INFRINGEMENT OF THE 053 PATENT

as if fully stated herein.

-22-

51. West View Research incorporates paragraphs 1 through 50 by reference

52. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe,
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either literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, in violation of 35 U.S.C. §
271(a), by making, using, selling, offering for sale, distributing, and/or importing in
or into the United States, without authority products and/or services that infringe at
least claims 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 32, 33, 35, 36, 39, 40, 41, 45, 48, 51, 59,
60, 61, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 73, 75, 78, 80, 81, 82, 83, 86, 89, 96, 98, 99, 101, 102,
103, 107, 108, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 122, 123, 124, 125,
126, 127, 128, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148, 149, 150, 160, 161, 162, 163,
164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 180, 194, 195, 196, 197, 198,
199, 200, 202, 203, and 204 of the ’053 patent, which products and/or services
include but may not be not limited to the ReachNow BMW Vehicles, ReachNow
Mini Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services, Fleet
Services, Reserve Services, and/or other Accused Products or Services provided,
sold, or offered for sale on or after March 29, 2016.

53. By way of example, Defendant has been and is directly infringing
literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, claim 23 of the *053 patent as
follows.

54. The Accused Products and Services include the ReachNow Android

Application, which is promoted on ReachNow websites as detailed supra.

@ Secure | https)//reachnow.com/

“#More roomyfor adve

Drive cars with extra seating and t{ui‘ik space—
o wperfect for trips out of town of impdrian

Enter your phone number.
We'll text you a download link.
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https://reachnow.com/en/

55.  Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application is available for download onto, inter alia, Google Android-
based smartphones, and “[r]equires Android 4.4 and up” per the Google Play
Website (https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing):

C | @ Secure https.//play.google.com/store/apps/details?id =comureachnow.carsharing

& Apps

My apps

Calegories w Home Top Charts Mew Releases

Shop ReachNow CarSharing

ReachMow, LLC Maps & Navigation LA 2

Games
® Everyone

< Family

Editors’ Choice

Account
Redeem

Buy gift card
My wishlist

My Flay activily

Parent Guide

BMW, BMW | and MINI at your
ingedtip

56. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application requires the host smartphone to have: (i) a computer readable
storage apparatus, such as a program memory device, on which to store the
Application (computer program code); and (ii) a processor to execute the computer
program code after storage:

-24-
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C | @ Secure | hitps//play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=c ReaChNOW Andr0|d App
‘ Apps Categories w Home Top I’ECIUIreS program memory
o e e o StOTage, and Android 4.4
My apps w— it .1 OIS (execution
Shop | environment) or later on
the host smartphone
Games ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
< Famiy Updated stalls Current Version
Editors’ Choice April 6, 2017 10,000 - 50,000 1.8.0
Requires Android Content Rating Interactive Elements
4.4 and up Everyone Shares Info
Lea

Permissions Report Offered By

col o : E
Account Flag as inappropriate ReachiMow, LLTC

57. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application further utilizes the smartphone’s Global Positioning System
(GPS)-based receiver for the GPS-based functions described below (i.e., generation
of location data). Per downloaded Android application test at San Diego, California:

9 Allow ReachNow to access
this device's location?

o
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“Version 1.8.0 can access:

Location

approximate location (network-based)

precise location (GPS and network-based)

access extra location provider commands

Phone
directly call phone numbers
read phone status and identity...” {emphasis added}

https://play.gooqgle.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing&hl=en

See also ReachNow service provider RideCell website:

“Location Information: Our Service may collect and use your
location information (for example, by using the GPS on your mobile
device) to provide certain functionality of our Service. If you choose
to enable our location features, your location information may be
publicly displayed within the Service. ... We may also use your
location information in an aggregate way, as described above in the
"Aggregated Personal Data" section.” {emphasis added}
https://ridecell.com/privacy.html

58. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application, when executed, generates several user interface screens with

which the user can interact with the Application:

-26-
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ReachNow CarSharing
Rasibbiem (L Mope § Metipais

ReachMow Mobllity Services

@ Abihbirn CarEnang

+ -

Smartphone’s capacitive touch
screen display device

The ReachNow Application requires the smartphone to have a display device to
display the user interface(s), and the application program is coded for use with a
capacitive touchscreen as shown above (i.e., the Android App requires the user to
interface via the touch screen soft function keys and icons for most/all features).

59. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application further requires the smartphone to have a cellular, Wi-Fi, or
other interface so that the Application can contact ReachNow or its designated proxy
(agent):

“Version 1.8.0 can access:

Location

approximate location (network-based)

precise location (GPS and network-based)
access extra location provider commands

Wi-Fi connection information
view Wi-Fi connections

Device ID & call information
read phone status and identity
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Other

full license to interact across users

receive data from Internet

view network connections

full network access

control vibration

prevent device from sleeping

read Google service configuration” {emphasis added}

The Android OS (generally) supports multiple air (wireless interfaces):

“Connectivity

Android supports connectivity technologies including GSM/EDGE,
Bluetooth, LTE, CDMA, EV-DO, UMTS, NFC, IDEN and WiMAX.

Bluetooth

Supports voice dialing and sending contacts between phones, playing
music, sending files (OPP), accessing the phone book (PBAP), A2DP
and AVRCP. Keyboard, mouse and joystick (HID) support is available
in Android 3.1+, and in earlier versions through manufacturer
customizations and third-party applications.” https://en.wikipedia.org/
wiki/List_of features_in_Android

Specifically, operating systems such as KitKat 4.4 use a connectivity manager/API
for management of wireless connections, as shown by the following Java class:

i1 Developers

< Reference

Android

* APLO =

ConnectivityManager

Summaryv

https://developer.android.com/reference/android/net/ConnectivityManager.html
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60. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application contacts ReachNow or its designated service provider to cause
provision of a service (e.g., delivery of data relating to proximate vehicles (“Drive”),
delivery of a vehicle for the user to drive (“Reserve”), or arrival of a vehicle to give
the user a ride (“Ride”), etc.) at the then-current location of the smartphone:

M epea—

ReachNow Mobility Services ReachMow CarSharing

PE Reochtion CarShuring ) Reachdiow CarShasing
QO 2317 view = 50,685 views
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1 & | i Secune hitt s/ fenana poutube com,iwa
5 ‘fqu Search
3
4
5
6 ReachMow Ride
7 Opan app [+
8
9
10
11 ReachNow Mobility Services
12 E:J] ﬁea:mw(ﬁarsh Hng : : : : ; .
- ReachNow “Ride” (i.e., request car with driver) function, alerting
13 user that their requested vehicle has arrived at their location
14
15 Tﬂu Search
16
17
18
19
ympk s e
" (5
- Open app oK
21 ma
22
23
24 i) 1347232
2 ReachNow Mobility Services
5 @ ReachMew CarSharing
26 = =3 2,317 views
27
28
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61. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application provides users with the services referenced above at least at
their then-current location (https://reachnow.com/en/brooklyn-ny/):

Wheels where you are

62. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Application is presently available and can be used in the United States, and

Defendant instructs users (“Members”) to download it:

Choose aCity ~ Help

e 0T

TG

Drive cars with extra seating and truflk space—
perfect for trips out of town of, impdHant errands.

Enter your phone number.
We'll text you a download link.

“U.S. Only”
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“What are the requirements for membership?

To become a ReachNow Member, you must have a valid U.S.
driver’s license, acceptable driving record including no major
violations (see membership agreement for details) and be at least 18
years old, and have at least 2 years of driving experience. A valid
credit or debit card is required in order to make payments. Prepaid
credit cards are not accepted.” http://reachnow.com/en/help/
{emphasis added}

QINUE = 4 100%l 12:04 PM

&  FAQs y

Where is the ReachNow local office
located?

Seattle: The ReachNow office is located in
Belltown at 2118 3rd Avenue, Seattle WA 98121.
While we do not have a retail space, members
can stop in and see us if you need a replacement
Member Key card. Portland: The Portland
ReachNow office is located downtown at 121
Southwest Salmon St, Suite 1100, Portland, OR
97204. While we do not have a retail space,
members can stop in and see us if you need a
replacement Member Key or have further
program questions. Our hours are Monday-Friday
9 a.m. to 5 p.m. Brooklyn: Please stay tuned,
more details to come.

Back to Index T

Join

How do | become a Member?

Download the ReachNow App on your iOS or
Android device and register with your current
driver's license and credit card. Follow the simple

63. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe,
either literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8§
271(a), by at least developing, testing, maintaining, demonstrating, and/or using in
the United States, without authority, products and/or services that infringe at least
claims 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30, 32, 33, 35, 36, 39, 40, 41, 45, 48, 51, 59, 60,
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61, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 73, 75, 78, 80, 81, 82, 83, 86, 89, 96, 98, 99, 101, 102, 103,
107, 108, 111, 112, 113, 114, 115, 116, 117, 118, 119, 120, 122, 123, 124, 125,
126, 127, 128, 141, 142, 143, 144, 145, 146, 147, 148, 149, 150, 160, 161, 162,
163, 164, 165, 166, 167, 168, 169, 172, 173, 174, 175, 176, 180, 194, 195, 196,
197, 198, 199, 200, 202, 203, and 204 of the 053 patent, which products and/or
services include but may not be not limited to, the ReachNow BMW and Mini
Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services, Fleet
Services, Reserve Services, Share Services, Fastlane Services, and/or other Accused
Products or Services sold or offered for sale on or after March 29, 2016.

64. Upon information and belief, based on the information presently
available to West View Research absent discovery, in addition to and/or in the
alternative to direct infringement, West View Research alleges Defendant has, since
receiving notice of the filing and/or service of this Complaint, induced infringement
and continue to induce infringement of at least claims 23, 24, 25, 26, 27, 28, 29, 30,
32, 33, 35, 36, 39, 40, 41, 45, 48, 51, 59, 60, 61, 66, 67, 68, 69, 70, 73, 75, 78, 80,
81, 82, 83, 86, 89, 96, 98, 99, 100, 101, 102, 103, 104, 105, 106, 111, 112, 113,
181, 182, 183, 184, 185, 186, 187, 188, 190, 191, 192, 193, 194, 195, 196, 197,
198, 199, 200, 201, 202, 203, and 204 of the *053 patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(b).

65. Upon information and belief, Defendant has and continues, since
receiving notice of the filing of the this Complaint, actively, knowingly, and
intentionally induced, and continues to actively, knowingly, and intentionally
induce, infringement of the 053 patent by making, using, selling, distributing,
offering for sale, importing, and/or otherwise supplying products and/or services
including the Accused Products and Services to third parties, with the knowledge
and specific intent that such third parties will use, sell, offer for sale, distribute,
and/or import, products and/or services supplied by Defendant, including without
limitation the ReachNow BMW Vehicles, ReachNow Mini Vehicles, ReachNow
App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services, Fleet Services, Reserve
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Services, Share Services, and Fastlane Services, of the Accused Products and
Services to directly infringe the ’053 patent.

66. Upon information and belief, despite Defendant’s knowledge of the
existence of the *053 patent since at least as early as the filing of this Complaint,
Defendant continues to encourage, instruct, enable, and otherwise aid and abet third
parties, including but not limited to Defendant’s customers, technical personnel,
Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users of the Accused Products
and Services to use the Accused Products and Services in a manner that directly
infringes the 053 patent.

67. Upon information and belief, Defendant specifically intends that their
customers and technical personnel, Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or
drivers/users use the Accused Products and Services in such a way that directly
infringes the ’053 patent by, at a minimum, advertising, enticing, encouraging,
instructing, and aiding and abetting its customers, agents, owners, and/or
drivers/users, through the publication and dissemination of marketing materials,
detailed operational instructions, on-line instructional videos, links to vendors or
Internet sites where computer software can be obtained, and/or technical assistance
related to the Accused Products and Services, to use, sell, offer for sale, distribute,
and/or import, products and/or services supplied by Defendant, including the
Accused Products and Services, to directly infringe the *053 patent.

68. Upon information and belief, Defendant knew and knows that their
actions, including but not limited to providing detailed operating instructions, press
releases, promotional and instructional on-line videos, and other literature, in
relation to the Accused Products and Services, would induce, have induced, and
continues to induce direct infringement of the 053 patent by third parties, including
but not limited to Defendant’s customers or technical personnel, Defendant’s
agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users.

69. Specifically, upon information and belief and by way of example,
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Defendant exercises direction and control over the distribution or provision of,
performance, maintenance, use, and conduct of the ReachNow BMW Vehicles,
ReachNow Mini Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride
Services, Fleet Services, Reserve Services, Share Services, and Fastlane Services,

as is provided in the ReachNow Membership Agreement (Ex, H):

“1.1 Membership Agreement. This ReachNow Free-Floating
CarSharing Program Membership Agreement (the “Agreement”)
governs the relationship and establishes the rights and responsibilities
of ReachNow LLC d/b/a ReachNow (“ReachNow™), as the program
owner and operator of, and you (“Member”), as a member of and

participant in, the ReachNow free-floating CarSharing program

(“ReachNow CarSharing”). ” {emphasis added}

“2.1 Car Sharing Vehicles. ReachNow will make BMW and MINI

vehicles (*“Vehicles”), available to Member for use in car sharing

partners”:

http://reachnow.com/en/partners/

Overview How it warks

transportation as provided in this Agreement. ” {emphasis added}

See also the Terms of Use at https://reachnow.com/en/terms/ (a true and

correct copy of which is provided as Exhibit J hereto).

70. Moreover, upon information and belief and by way of example,
Defendant explicitly refers to their third-party service providers as “business

RideCell is ReachNow service
provider

BReachNow  Seattie, WA ~  Help

& RideCell

i AN
Cancer Care AT
Alliance

https://ridecell.com/
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== RideCell Ridesharing ~ Carsharing  Autonomous  About  Contact

Theawtld's mostaritelligent mobility platfor

RideCell offers the best way for automotive OEMs and new mobility startups to launch premiumiservice

RideCell powers ReachMow, BMW's — "...car makers are flocking to RideCell to
carsharing service in Seattle, Portland f—w“ get themselves into the ride hailing/car  FMEE
and Brooklyn—with plans to expand @ ] sharing game.” ; i
cities and services Learn more »

Leam more »

71. Upon information and belief and by way of example, Defendant further
explicitly has customers (“Members”) call ReachNow directly (as opposed to
calling a third party):

“Troubleshooting

What if my car won’t unlock? What do I do if the light does not
turn green?
Please call Member Support at (844) 732-2466.

What should I do if I’m in an accident?
Call 911 immediately. ... Notify Member Support at (844) 732-
2466.

What should | do if I’m running out of energy when driving
with the electric BMW i3?

...Press the button on the cruise control stick (left side of the steering
wheel) until you see remaining miles displayed on the control panel.
You can now determine the distance you can safely drive to the
nearest charger. Find the nearest public charging location by using the
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in-car navigation or call Member Support at (844) 732-2466.T
{emphasis added}

@ ReaCh Now Mobility services by ;i. r

2118 3rd Avenue Seattle, WA 98121 +1 (844) 732-2466 support@reachnow.com © 2017 ReachNow LLC

http://reachnow.com/en/help/

72.  West View Research has no adequate remedy at law against these acts
of patent infringement. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing
irreparable harm and damages to West View Research and will continue to do so
unless and until Defendant is permanently enjoined by the Court.

73.  As a direct and proximate result of the acts of patent infringement by
Defendant, West View Research has been damaged and continues to be damaged in
an amount not presently known.

74.  West View Research has incurred and will incur attorneys’ fees, costs,
and expenses in the prosecution of this action. The circumstances of this dispute
create or will create an exceptional case within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285, and
West View Research is entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary fees and
expenses.

COUNT Il
INFRINGEMENT OF THE 450 PATENT
75. West View Research incorporates paragraphs 1 through 74 by reference

as if fully stated herein.

76. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe,
either literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8§
271(a), by making, using, selling, offering for sale, distributing, and/or importing in
or into the United States, without authority products and/or services that infringe at
least claims 47, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 64, 65, 67, 68, 69, 70, 72, 74,
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76, 77, 78, 79, 81, 84, and 107 of the *450 patent, which products and/or services
include but may not be not limited to the ReachNow BMW Vehicles, ReachNow
Mini Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services,
Fleet Services, Reserve Services, and/or other Accused Products or Services
provided, sold or offered for sale on or after July 19, 2016.

77. By way of example, Defendant has been and is directly infringing
literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, claim 47 of the *450 patent as
follows.

78. The Accused Products and Services include the ReachNow Android
Application, which is promoted on ReachNow websites as detailed supra.

@ Secure | https)//reachnow.com/e

EReachNow chooseacity ~  Hetp

Drive cars with extra seating and t{ui‘ik space—
o gperfect for trips out of town of impdriant errands,

Enter your phone number.
We'll text you a download link.

https://reachnow.com/en/

79. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application is available for download onto, inter alia, Google Android-
based smartphones, and “[r]equires Android 4.4 and up” per the Google Play
Website (https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing):
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1=com.reachnow.carsharing

Calegories w Home Top Charts Mew Releases

Games

< Family

ReachNow CarSharing
ReachMow, LLC  Maps & Navigation * ok

® Everyone

Editors’ Choice

Account
Redeem

Buy gift card
My wishlist

My Flay activily

Parent Guide

program code after storage:

My apps

C' | @ Secure | hitps://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=ce

Categories w Home TopQ reqUireS program memory
storage, and Android 4.4

- ReachNow reservations are con

- To lock or unlack your car typic

BMW, BMW | and MINI at your
fingertips

80. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application requires the host smartphone to have: (i) a computer readable
storage apparatus, such as a program memory device, on which to store the
Application (computer program code); and (ii) a processor to execute the computer

p— e

ReachNow Android App

OIS (execution
environment) or later on

Shop
the host smartphone
Games ADDITIONAL INFORMATION
< Family n
Updated Inftalls Current Version
Editors’ Choice April 6,2017 10,000 - 50,000 1.8.0
Requires Android Content Rating Interactive Elements
4.4 and up Shares Info
Permissions Report Offered By
Account View details Flag as inappropriate ReachiNow, LLC

-39-
COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT




Cas

© 00 ~N o o b~ w N

S T N N N O T N T T N O e e N N T ~ S S T e
©® N o g B~ W N P O © O N o o~ W N Lk O

e 3:17-cv-00862-AJB-JLB Document 1 Filed 04/27/17 PagelD.41 Page 41 of 57

81. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application further utilizes the smartphone’s Global Positioning System
(GPS)-based receiver for the GPS-based functions described below (i.e., generation
of location data). Per downloaded Android application test at San Diego, CA:

9 Allow ReachNow to access
this device's location?

DENY

LIST @

“Version 1.8.0 can access:

Location

approximate location (network-based)

precise location (GPS and network-based)

access extra location provider commands
... {emphasis added}

https://play.google.com/store/apps/details?id=com.reachnow.carsharing&hl=en

See also ReachNow service provider RideCell website:

“Location Information:

Our Service may collect and use your location information (for

example, by using the GPS on your mobile device) to provide certain
-40-
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functionality of our Service. If you choose to enable our location
features, your location information may be publicly displayed within
the Service. ... We may also use your location information in an
aggregate way, as described above in the "Aggregated Personal Data"
section.” {emphasis added} https://ridecell.com/privacy.htmi

82.  Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application, when executed, generates several user interface screens with

which the user can interact with the Application:

ety b cemy

("] Tube/

Smartphone’s capacitive touch
screen display device

The ReachNow Application requires the smartphone to have a display device to
display the user interface(s), and the application program is coded for use with a
capacitive touchscreen as shown above (i.e., the Android App requires the user to
interface via the touch screen soft function keys and icons for most/all features).

83. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application further requires the smartphone to have a cellular, Wi-Fi, or

other interface so that the Application can contact ReachNow or its designated
proxy (agent):

“Version 1.8.0 can access:
Location
approximate location (network-based)

41-
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1 precise location (GPS and network-based)
) access extra location provider commands
3 Wi-Fi connection information
view Wi-Fi connections
4
Device ID & call information
S read phone status and identity
0 Other
7 full license to interact across users
receive data from Internet
8 view network connections
full network access
9 control vibration
10 prevent device from sleeping
read Google service configuration” {emphasis added}
11
1 The Android OS (generally) supports multiple air (wireless interfaces):
13 “Connectivity
14 Android supports connectivity technologies including GSM/EDGE,
Bluetooth, LTE, CDMA, EV-DO, UMTS, NFC, IDEN and WiMAX.
1
> Bluetooth
1 L . . i
0 Supports voice dialing and sending contacts between phones, playing music,
17 sending files (OPP), accessing the phone book (PBAP), A2DP and AVRCP.
Keyboard, mouse and joystick (HID) support is available in Android 3.1+,
18 and in earlier versions through manufacturer customizations and third-party
19 applications.” https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/List_of features in_Android
oo | Specifically, OS such as KitKat 4.4 use a connectivity manager/API for
o1 | Management of wireless connections, as shown by the following Java class:
22
23
24
25
26
27
28
-42-
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1 i1 Developers
2 & Reference .. st Chaats 1 G nd
ConnectivityManager T e
3 ““ﬂ:‘“df"ih > APLO = public. elase Connectivitymanigen
4
5 I “h
6
7
8 —
9
10 Summarv
11 | https://developer.android.com/reference/android/net/ConnectivityManager.html.
12 | Hence, the ReachNow Android App minimum required KitKat 4.4 Android OS
13 | necessarily supports multiple air interfaces, including the above-shown connectivity
14 | management and “fail over” between one air interface and another one when
15 | connectivity to the one interface is lost (e.g., when on Wi-Fi, and the user roams out
16 | of the Wi-Fi coverage area).
17 Both LTE/LTE-A and Wi-Fi (802.11a,g,n,ac,ad,ax,ay) utilize (i) a plurality
18 | of radio frequency carriers, and (ii) a plurality of different time periods (commonly
19 | referred to as “time frequency resources”) for both uplink and downlink
20 | communications, so as to enable higher data speeds and avoid resource contention
21 | and interference:
22 “LTE OFDM Technology
23 To overcome the effect of multi path fading problem available in
UMTS, LTE uses Orthogonal Frequency Division Multiplexing
24 (OFEDM) for the downlink - that is, from the base station to the
terminal to transmit the data over many narrow band careers of 180
25 KHz each instead of spreading one signal over the complete 5MHz
26 career bandwidth ...
27
28
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The OFDM symbols are grouped into resource blocks. The resource
blocks have a total size of 180kHz in the frequency domain and 0.5ms
In_the time domain. Each 1ms Transmission Time Interval (TTI)
consists of two slots (Tslot).

Af= 15 kHz

One resource block
(12%7 = B4 resource elements)

! ¥yl
fAS A
Ml VAV
11 /
1,

12 sub-carriers, 180 kH,

Each user is allocated a number of so-called resource blocks in the
time.frequency grid. The more resource blocks a user gets, and the
higher the modulation used in the resource elements, the higher the
bit-rate. Which resource blocks and how many the user gets at a given
point in time depend on advanced scheduling mechanisms in the
frequency and time dimensions.

LTE uses a pre-coded version of OFDM called Single Carrier
Frequency Division Multiple Access (SC-FDMA) in the uplink. This
IS to compensate for a drawback with normal OFDM, which has a
very high Peak to Average Power Ratio (PAPR).

...SC-FDMA solves this problem by grouping together the resource
blocks in such a way that reduces the need for linearity, and so power
consumption, in the power amplifier. A low PAPR also improves
coverage and the cell-edge performance.”

https://www.tutorialspoint.com/Ite/lte ofdm technology.htm

SC-FDMA (mobile uplink to basestation) uses multiple RF carriers:

“Transmitter and Receiver Structure of LP-OFDMA/SC-FDMA
The transmission processing of SC-FDMA is very similar to that of
OFDMA. For each user, the sequence of bits transmitted is mapped to
a_complex constellation of symbols (BPSK, QPSK or M-Quadrature
amplitude modulation). Then different transmitters (users) are
assigned different Fourier coefficients. ...

In SC-FDMA, multiple access among users is made possible by
assigning different users different sets of non-overlapping Fourier
coefficients (sub-carriers). This is achieved at the transmitter by
inserting (prior to IDFT) silent Fourier coefficients (at positions
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assigned to other users), and removing them on the receiver side after
the DFT.” https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/Single-carrier FDMA

Protocol |[edit)

vTeE | 802.11 network PHY standards

[hide]
= — Approximate
Te- and- - it
Stream data ratel’! rangelcitation needed]
802.11 . Release + quency | width Allowable . - . g
protocol datel® MIMO streams Indoor Outdoor
(GHz) # | (MHz) ¢ (Mbit/s) = (m) #|(fty ¢ (m) + (i) ¢
802.11-1997 Jun 1997 2.4 22 1,2 NIA DSSS. FHSS 20| 66| 100 330
5 35| 115 120 390
Sep 1999 - 20 6.9, 12, 18, 24, 36, 48, 54 NA OFDM —
a7k — — | 5,000 16,0004
b Sep 1999 24 2 1,2,5.5 11 NA DSSS 35| 115 140 460
g Jun 2003 2.4 20 6.9, 12. 18, 24, 36, 48, 54 NA OFDM 38| 125 140 460
400 ns Gl 7.2, 14.4, 21.7, 26.9, 43.3, 57.8, 65, 72.2 7] -
20 = 70| 230| 250 82008
800 ns Gl - 6.5, 13, 19.5, 26, 39, 52, 58.5, 65 [°]
n Oct 2009 2.4/5 = 4
400 ns GI - 15, 30, 45, 60, 90, 120, 135, 150 (& -
40 70| 230| 250 82001

800 ns Gl : 13.5, 27. 40.5. 54, 81, 108, 121.5, 135 (€]

o 400 ns GI - 7.2, 14.4, 21.7, 28.9, 43.3, 57.8, 65, 72.2, 86.7, 96.3 & 25| 1158
800 ns Gl © 6.5, 13, 19.5, 26, 39, 52, 58.5, 65, 78, 86.7 [

© 00 ~N o o b~ w N

- MIMO-OFDM
- 400 ns Gl - 15, 30, 45, 60, 90, 120, 135, 150, 180, 200 B! a5 | 1158
800 ns GI - 13.5, 27, 40.5, 54, 81, 108, 121.5, 135, 162, 180 (]
ac Dec 2013 5 - 8
400 ns GI - 32.5, 65, 97.5, 130, 195, 260, 292.5. 325, 390, 433.3 8]
20 35| 1158

800 ns Gl : 29.2, 58.5, 87.8, 117, 175.5, 234, 263.2, 292.5, 351, 390 [©!

400 ns Gl : 65, 130, 195, 260, 390, 520, 585, 650, 780, 866.7 [

, 35| 158
800 ns Gl  58.5, 117, 175.5, 234, 351, 468, 702, 780 [°]

160

=
o

r 10 . OFDM, single carrier, 1]
ad Dec 2012 60 2,160 Up 10 6,912 (6.75 Gbits) [0 NA N 33 | 1001
low-power single carrier

[
[

Est. Dec 20160 0.9 Up to 20
aj Est Jul 2017 | 45/60
12 ax Est. Dec 20188 | 2.4/5 Up to 10.53 Gbit's MIMO-OFDM
ay Est. Nov 20190 60 8000 Up to 100.000 (100 Ghit/s) 4 OFDM, single carrier, 60
az Est. Mar 20216 60

[EY
w

« ATA2 |EEE 802 11y-2008 extended operation of 802_11a to the licensed 3.7 GHz band_ Increased power limits allow a range up to 5,000 m_ As of 2009 it is only being licensed in the United States by the FCC
o B1B2 B3 B4 BS BS Assymes short guard interval (SGI) enabled.
o C1C2C3C40C5C6 pAssumes short guard interval (SGI) disabled

e
[S 2 BN SN

https://en.wikipedia.org/wiki/IEEE_802.11#History
Nearly all modern Android OS smartphones have both advanced Wi-Fi (e.g.,

e =
~N o

802.11a/g/n) and LTE data interfaces; see exemplary Samsung Galaxy S7

[EY
(00]

specifications below:

N N DD N DD DD DD DD DN
coO N o o A W N B O o©
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Galaxy 57
(User memory is less than the Memory/microSD™
total memory due to storage of Capacity @

the operating system and MicroSD (Up to 256GB)
software used to operate the

features. Actual user memary

will vary depending on the

operator and may change after

software upgrades are

performed.)

32GB

Network

Frequencies and Data Type SIM Size
2G GSM: GSMB50,65M900, Nano

DCS1800, PCS1900
3G UMTS: B1(2100), B2(1900),

382(:&2)(4[?;(:)3;4(2010;, Mu|t|p|e LTE
Ség;;?)SET}E: BT21007, BZ(1500), (CE' lular data) and
2600, 800, 12700, Wi-Fi (WLAN)
:;iias%%})’,s;g;fgg;Bsmzzum interface standards
oD D) supported

B4112500)

Connectivity

wi-Fi (D) use (D) Bluetooth
802.11 a/b/g/n/ac 2.4G+5GHz, USB 2.0 Bluetooth v4.2
VHT20 MU-MIMO

http://www.samsung.com/us/explore/galaxy-s7/

84. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application contacts ReachNow or its designated service provider to cause
provision of a service (e.g., delivery of data relating to proximate vehicles (“Drive™),
delivery of a vehicle for the user to drive (“Reserve”), or arrival of a vehicle to give

the user a ride (“Ride™), etc.) at the then-current location of the smartphone:

ReachNow @ The Solaire
Yo B & wil £ wvaabie

ReachNow “Car Sharing” function ‘ -
ReachMNow Mobility Services T
B Reachow CarSharing i et
2317 iew E‘!] Ce=m 50,685 visws
_46_
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httpsy, W\-.w.ymnuhr'.mm walcnv=3As0misnyt

Search

ReachNow Ride

Your driver has pulled up and is

waiting for you

OK

ReachNow Mobility Services

E’ ReachMNow CarShagioa, - - - - - -
2 ReachNow “Ride” (i.e., request car with driver) function, alerting
user that their requested vehicle has arrived at their location
Yuu Search

ReachNow Reserve
Your BMW X1 has arrived

0K

Open app

ReachNow Mobility Services
ReachMow CarSharing

2,317 views

85. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application provides users with the services referenced above at least at
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their then-current location, and the user does not have to personally know where
that location is such as by address (https://reachnow.com/en/brooklyn-ny/):

ReachNow intent is to Wheels where you are
provide users service Ao g i i s
at their location s

86. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
Android Application (and the ReachNow Membership Agreement) further require:
(i) the user to enter valid credit or debit card information via the App to establish an
account; and (i) use by the App and the ReachNow service to pay for reserved/used
vehicles or services (per test conducted in San Diego, California shown below):

BEO= RUE T o o5%0 1224 PM

Registration | Payment

= il  REDACTED
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1 “8.4 Accordingly, Member authorizes ReachNow to release
information regarding Member and Member’s participation in
2 ReachNow CarSharing including, but not limited to, the credit card or
3 debit card in Member’s name provided to ReachNow (‘‘Payment
Method™), ...
4
Pre-Authorization and Rental Invoice. After Member has
5 completed a reservation, ReachNow will preauthorize the Payment
6 Method for an amount as described in the Pricing Terms. Each
preauthorization will cause Member’s credit or funds available through
7 Payment Method to be decreased by the preauthorized amount for the
duration of the applicable Trip and until any excess funds or credit are
8 released. After the end of each Trip (which will be the End Trip Time for
Trips with Vehicles reserved through the Reserve Feature), the cost of
9 renting the Vehicle for the duration of the Trip (including cost for
10 driving minutes used, Park and Hold (as defined in the Pricing Terms)
minutes used, and miles driven), the Shared Asset Fee (if any), and any
11 applicable taxes and add-ons (the “Rental Cost™) will be charged to
Payment Method. An invoice showing the Rental Cost will be available
12 through _the App (each a “Rental Invoice”).” Membership Agreement
13 (Ex. H).
" 87. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
15 Android Application (utilized by ReachNow customers to access RideCell services)
16 Is rendered in a Python programming language using a Django web development
framework:
17
18 “Location: ... US...
Technologies: Python, Django, Node.js, Ruby, AWS, Postgres, Neo4j,
19 Selenium, Redis...
20 Seeking: A new position where | can continue to grow as an engineer.
My primary language atm is python, at my last job | worked on a
21 Python/Django stack to launch BMW Reachnow a free floating car
22 share:  http://www.bmwcarsharing.com/. ...” {emphasis and
’ annotations added} https://news.ycombinator.com/item?id=13301834
24 88. Upon information and belief and by way of example, the ReachNow
25 | Android Application (utilized by ReachNow customers to access RideCell services)
26 | utilizes TLS/SSL security between itself and the RideCell server(s):
27
28
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“Principal Site Reliability Engineer at RideCell (San Francisco,

Ridecell is the leading white-label platform that enables our
customers like BMW to launch, operate, and scale new mobility

services like car sharing, ride sharing and car rentals all on a single

Desired Skills and Experience

Services).

unified platform, in just a matter of months.

Act as the subject matter expert and showcase your deep
understanding of cloud infrastructures in AWS (Amazon Web

Strong understanding of networking fundamentals, security

(SSL/TLS), HTTP...” {emphasis added} https://srejobs.com/2017/
03/16/Principal-Site-Reliability-Engineer-at-RideCell-San-Francisco-

CA-RideCellRideCell.html

supports TLS/SSL security as installed:

ts.html

@ QUALYS' SSL LABS

You are here: Home > Projects > User Agent Capabilities

User Agent Capabilities .son

User agent TLS 1.2 SNI Forward Secrecy

Android 2.37 No No Yes

Android 4.0.4 No Yes Yes

Android 4.1.1 Mo Yes Yes

Android 4.2 2 No Yes Yes

Android 4.3 No Yes Yes

89. Upon information and belief and by way of example, Android KitKat
4.4 OS and later, the minimum required by the ReachNow Android Application,

Home Projects Qualys.com Contact

Test Your Browser »

Stapling Session Tickets

Android 4.4.2 Yes Yes Yes

Android 5.0.0 Yes Yes Yes

https://www.ssllabs.com/ssltest/clients.html
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i
! Developers DESIGN DEVELOP DISTRIBUTE

< Training Develop > Training » Best Practices for Security & Privacy

Animation " "
i s oty Security with HTTPS and SSL
& the Cloud
The Secure Sockets Layer (SSL)—now technically known as Transport Layer Security (TLS)
:‘"""‘5 Apps with Location &~ —is a common building block for encrypted communications between clients and servers
aps
- It's possible that an application might use SSL incorrectly such that malicious entities may
Building Apps with User Info & v be able to intercept an app's data over the network. To help you ensure that this does not
Sign-In happen to your app, this article highlights the common pitfalls when using secure network
. protocols and addresses some larger concerns about using Public-Key Infrastructure
Building Apps for Wearables g
(PKI)
Building Apps for TV v
Building Apps for Auto v Con CeptS
Best Practices for Interaction& In a typical SSL usage scenario, a server is configured with a certificate containing a public key as well
Engagement as a matching private key. As part of the handshake between an SSL client and server, the server
Best Practices for User w proves it has the private key by signing its certificate with public-key cryptography.

https://developer.android.com/training/articles/security-ssl.html

90. Upon information and belief and by way of example, TLS/SSL security
provides for both client and server authentication, and establishes a session as part
of the handshake/authentication phase:

“How SSL and TLS provide identification, authentication,
confidentiality, and integrity

For server authentication, the client uses the server's public key
to encrypt the data that is used to compute the secret key. The server
can generate the secret key only if it can decrypt that data with the
correct private key.

For client authentication, the server uses the public key in the
client certificate to decrypt the data the client sends during step 5 of
the handshake. The exchange of finished messages that are encrypted
with the secret key (steps 7 and 8 in the overview) confirms that
authentication is complete.

If any of the authentication steps fail, the handshake fails and
the session terminates.

The exchange of digital certificates during the SSL or TLS
handshake is part of the authentication process. For more information
about how certificates provide protection against impersonation, refer
to the related information. The certificates required are as follows,
where CA X issues the certificate to the SSL or TLS client, and CA'Y

issues the certificate to the SSL or TLS server:
-51-
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For server authentication only, the SSL or TLS server needs:

. The personal certificate issued to the server by CA'Y

. The server's private key

and the SSL or TLS client needs:

. The CA certificate for CA'Y

If the SSL or TLS server requires client authentication, the
server verifies the client's identity by verifying the client's digital
certificate with the public key for the CA that issued the personal
certificate to the client, in this case CA X. For both server and client
authentication, the server needs:

. The personal certificate issued to the server by CA'Y

. The server's private key

. The CA certificate for CA X

and the client needs:

. The personal certificate issued to the client by CA X

. The client's private key

. The CA certificate for CA'Y

Both the SSL or TLS server and client might need other CA
certificates to form a certificate chain to the root CA certificate. For
more information about certificate chains, refer to the related
information.

What happens during certificate verification

As noted in steps 3 and 6 of the overview, the SSL or TLS
client verifies the server's certificate, and the SSL or TLS server

verifies the client's certificate. There are four aspects to this
verification:

1. The digital signature is checked (see Digital signatures in
SSL and TLYS).

2. The certificate chain is checked you should have
intermediate CA certificates (see How certificate chains work).

3. The expiry and activation dates and the validity period
are checked.

4, The revocation status of the certificate is checked (see
Working with revoked certificates).

Secret key reset

During an SSL or TLS handshake a secret key is generated to
encrypt data between the SSL or TLS client and server. The secret key
Is used in a mathematical formula that is applied to the data to
transform plaintext into unreadable ciphertext, and ciphertext into
plaintext.”  {emphasis added}  https://www.ibm.com/support/
knowledgecenter/en/SSFKSJ _7.1.0/com.ibm.mg.doc/sy10670 .htm
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91. Defendant has directly infringed, and continues to directly infringe,
either literally and/or under the doctrine of equivalents, in violation of 35 U.S.C. 8§
271(a), by at least developing, testing, maintaining, demonstrating, and/or using in
the United States, without authority, products and/or services that infringe at least
claims 47, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 64, 65, 67, 68, 69, 70, 72, 74, 76,
77, 78, 79, 81, 84, and 107 of the ’450 patent, which products and/or services
include but may not be not limited to the ReachNow BMW Vehicles, ReachNow
Mini Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing Services, Ride Services,
Fleet Services, Reserve Services, and/or other Accused Products or Services
provided, sold or offered for sale on or after July 19, 2016.

92. Upon information and belief, based on the information presently
available to West View Research absent discovery, in addition to and/or in the
alternative to direct infringement, West View Research alleges that Defendant has,
since receiving notice of the filing and/or service of this Complaint, induced
infringement and continue to induce infringement of at least claims 14, 15, 16, 17,
18, 20, 21, 47, 51, 53, 54, 55, 56, 57, 58, 59, 60, 61, 64, 65, 67, 68, 69, 70, 72, 74,
76,77,78,79, 81, 84, and 107 of the *450 patent under 35 U.S.C. § 271(Db).

93. Upon information and belief, Defendant continues, since receiving
notice of the filing of this Complaint, actively, knowingly, and intentionally
induced, and continues to actively, knowingly, and intentionally induce,
infringement of the 450 patent by making, using, selling, offering for sale,
distributing, and/or otherwise supplying products and/or services including the
Accused Products and Services to third parties, with the knowledge and specific
intent that such third parties will use, sell, offer for sale, and/or import, products
and/or services supplied by Defendant, including at least the ReachNow BMW
Vehicles, ReachNow Mini Vehicles, ReachNow App Products, Car Sharing
Services, Ride Services, Fleet Services, Reserve Services, Share Services, Fastlane
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Services, ReachNow BMW Vehicles and App Products, and ReachNow Mini
Vehicles and App Products of the Accused Products and Services to directly
infringe the *450 patent.

94. Upon information and belief, despite Defendant’s knowledge of the
existence of the *450 patent since at least as early as the filing of this Complaint,
Defendant continues to encourage, instruct, enable, and otherwise aid and abet third
parties, including but not limited to, Defendant’s customers or technical personnel,
Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users of the Accused Products
and Services to use the Accused Products and Services in a manner that directly
infringes the *450 patent.

95. Upon information and belief, Defendant specifically intended that its
customers or technical personnel, Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or
drivers/users use the Accused Products and Services in such a way that directly
infringes the ’450 patent by, at a minimum, advertising, enticing, encouraging,
instructing, and aiding and abetting their customers, agents, vehicle owners, and/or
drivers/users, through the publication and dissemination of marketing materials,
detailed operational instructions, on-line promotional and instructional videos,
and/or technical assistance related to the Accused Products and Services, to use,
sell, offer for sale, and/or import, products and/or services supplied by Defendant,
including the Accused Products and Services, to directly infringe the *450 patent.

96. Upon information and belief, Defendant knew and knows that its
actions, including but not limited to providing detailed operating instructions,
promotional and instructional on-line videos, press releases, and other literature, in
relation to the Accused Products and Services, would induce, have induced, and
continues to induce direct infringement of the 450 patent by third parties, including
but not limited to Defendant’s customers or technical personnel, Defendant’s
agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users.

97. Specifically, and by way of example, and as detailed at least in Pars.
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28-44, 62, and 69 supra, each incorporated herein by reference, Defendant provides
detailed operating instructions, promotional and instructional on-line videos, press
releases, and other literature, in relation to the Accused Products and Services,
which induce, have induced, and continue to induce direct infringement of the *450
patent by third parties, including but not limited to Defendant’s customers or
technical personnel, Defendant’s agents, vehicle owners, and/or drivers/users,
including residents of the District.

98. West View Research has no adequate remedy at law against these acts
of patent infringement. Defendant’s actions complained of herein are causing
irreparable harm and damages to West View Research and will continue to do so
unless and until Defendant is permanently enjoined by the Court.

99. As a direct and proximate result of the acts of patent infringement by
Defendant, West View Research has been damaged and continues to be damaged in
an amount not presently known.

100. West View Research has incurred and will incur attorneys’ fees, costs,
and expenses in the prosecution of this action. The circumstances of this dispute
create or will create an exceptional case within the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285, and
West View Research is entitled to recover its reasonable and necessary fees and
expenses.

PRAYER FOR RELIEF
West View Research respectfully requests that judgment be entered in its

favor and against Defendant, and that the Court award the following relief to West
View Research:

A. A judgment in favor of West View Research that Defendant has
infringed, directly and/or indirectly, the Patents-in-Suit;

B. A judgment and order that Defendant accounts for and pays all
damages necessary to adequately compensate West View Research for infringement
of the Patents-in-Suit, but in no event less than a reasonable royalty;
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C. A judgment and order finding that this is an exceptional case within
the meaning of 35 U.S.C. § 285 and awarding West View Research its reasonable
attorneys’ fees against Defendant;

D. A judgment and order requiring Defendant to provide an accounting
and to pay supplemental damages to West View Research, including without
limitation, pre-judgment and post-judgment interest; and

E.  Anyand all other relief to which West View Research may be entitled.

JURY DEMAND
West View Research hereby respectfully demands trial by jury of all issues

so triable.

Dated: April 27, 2017 Respectfully submitted,
GAZDZINSKI & ASSOCIATES, P.C.
[s/ Adam Garson

ADAM GARSON
FREDERIC G. LUDWIG, IlI

Attorneys for Plaintiff
WEST VIEW RESEARCH, LLC

-56-
COMPLAINT FOR PATENT INFRINGEMENT






